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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Bedford Brown Bethell House is an architecturally significant home built in the
Colonial Revival style. This two and one-half story frame structure faces east, and
it is built in a symmetrical design.

The east and south sides of the first floor are surrounded by a large veranda which in-
cludes 1,036 square feet of floor space. Ten Doric columns support the veranda roof,
and two engaged Doric columns are located at each end of the veranda next to the house.

The front entrance of the home is quite intricate. The door contains a full-length
panel of beveled glass, large sidelites and transom containing panels of beveled glass.
The doorway has an entablature-type header which includes dentil work and other fine
details of craftsmanship.

On either side of the front doorway are huge one-over-one double hung sashes. Most of

the windows in the house are of this type. Window openings are numerous on all eleva-
tions of the structure. Second story windows are placed in a symmetrical position to
those on the first level. For instance, two smaller windows are located above each of the
large windows on the front of the structure. A beautiful Palladian window, with leaded
fan light, is located on the second story directly above the front entrance. A small
decorative balustrade, which once surrounded this window, is now missing.

The house also has another formal entrance, though much less elaborate than the front
doorway. It is entered through the south side of the house at the far end of the ver-
anda.

The roof of the house is high-hipped and includes four dormers, one on each side of the
basically square-shaped structure.

The front dormer (east) contains three one over one double hung sashes, and it is located
directly above the Palladian window. This triple effect of the three-windowed dormer,
Palladian window (three sections) and front door with sidelites, ties the different
levels of the structure together and adds greatly to the symmetrical plan of the home.

The dormers which face south and west are each single windowed, and the dormer on the
north side includes a window with a zig-zag pattern.

The east and south elevations of the house look basically the same as when the house was
built with the exception of the balustrade already mentioned, and the fact that the
screened-in porches at the southwest corner of the house have had glass windows added

to replace screens and latticework which once covered the window openings. This was
done in the 1950's.

West and north elevations also look basically the same as when the home was constructed
with the exception that two bathrooms have been added on the first and second floors in

the northwest corner of the structure. This was also done in the 1950's.

The foundation of the house was once surrounded at its base by latticework.
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Three of the four original chimneys have been removed from the roof of the house, but the
large central chimney still remains at the peak of the roof.

The house is a tall structure (approximately 40 feet tall from ground to peak), standing
on its original four city lots. The rear of the house is framed by several large pecan
trees dating back to the period when the house was built.

Interior features of note in the house include spacious hallways, sliding doors, and stair-
cases, with balustrades.

The house was originally heated with coal stoves which were vented through brick flues.
These stoves are no longer in the home, but the original wood burning fireplace in the 1li-
brary remains. It was the only fireplace built in the home, and the mantel is constructed
of quarter-sawn oak. The mantel is dated September 1, 1909.

Woodwork throughout the house is pine. Woodwork in the front and back foyers, staircases,
library, and dressingroom still maintains its original finish.

The floor plan of the house 'is the same as when it was built except that two baths have
been added, and two porches have been enclosed.

Stained glass doors now occupy space in the front foyer where sliding pine doors once
stood. The sliding doors were removed during the 1950's, and the stained glass doors
(from an old hotel) were recently added.

In addition, closets have recently been added in two bedrooms, and the door at the home's
south entrance was once the front door on an 1880's house that occupied the same block as
the Bethell home.

Other than these changes, and the modernization of the kitchen, the house still appears
much as it did originally. Original doors, transoms, hardware, etc., are still in use.

Several of the brass light fixtures in the home are original to the house.

The Bethell home is of superior construction and exemplifies the fine craftsmanship that
appeared in finer homes built during the period of its construction.

The foundation of the house is built of concrete or sandstone piers. Floor joists pre-date
the construction of the house and once occupied space in another structure.

The siding on the house is beveled. Studs on all the exterior walls of the house are
2 x 6's and interior walls are 2 x 4's.

There is no plasterwork in the house. All interior walls are constructed of a solid layer
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of board. This solid layer of board was once covered with canvas and then with wallpaper.
In recent years, sheetrock has been placed over this surface to provide a smoother area
for wallpaper, paint, etc.

A variety of wood was used in the house, including pine, cypress, and gum. All floors,
including the third floor, are constructed of first grade pine. The first floor is double
floored, while those on the second and third levels are single.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Bedford Brown Bethell House in Des Arc, Arkansas stands as one of the most elegant old
homes in the agricultural Grand Prairie region of Arkansas. Constructed 1912-1913, the
Bethell House is architecturally significant to the small river town of Des Arc. It is a
source of pride for the people of the small community.

The Bethell house is also a reminder of Des Arc's close kinship with the White River.

Though it is now predominantly a farming community, the city was once a bustling river port.
Steamboats and barges brought goods into the city, and large mercantile stores were extreme-
ly profitable businesses. The merchants of these businesses built large homes in this

river town, and the Bethell house remains as one of the last of these structures.

Bedford Brown Bethell, the original owner of the Bethell house, was born August 23, 1846,
in Tulip Ridge, Arkansas.l He was the son of Dr. William and Elizabeth Brown Bethell,
originally from North Carolina. In the mid-1850's, the family moved to Des Arc, and this
is where Bedford spent most of his life.?

During the last two years of the Civil War, Bedford Bethell served in Company G., Second
Arkansas Cavalry.3 After the war, he became a cub-pilot on the steamboat "Liberty #3,"
which traveled the White River.%

After serving in this capacity, Bethell went into the mercantile business with a brother-in-
law, Cincinnatus Walt.® The business proved to be very profitable, and in later years, came
to be known as "B. B. Bethell and Sons."

The Bethells were very important in the area of commerce. Their business grew so rapidly
that they expanded it, and during the early part of the century, they owned and operated

mercantile stores in Conway, Searcy, Russellville, Monticello, and Paris, Arkansas.® The
brick building which once housed B. B. Bethell and Sons in Des Arc, still stands on Main

Street.

B. B. Bethell bought the property on which he built the Bethell house on May 2, 1912.7

He died the following year on December 20, 1913.8 Therefore, the Bethell House was built
within this span of time. It has been said the B. B. Bethell only lived in the house a
few months before his death.

Bethell's widow, Mary Agnes Walsh Bethell, continued to live in the home until her death

in 1919.9 After Mrs. Bethell died, the house fell heir to her eldest son, william.10
His family lived in the house until 1953, when it was sold out of the family. 11 ppe

house went through a number of owners, and it also served as a boarding house. 1In
June 1977, the house was bought by its present owners, and restoration work has been in
progress since that time. 12
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The Bethell house was built by a well-known local builder called Captain Keaty.l3 A few of
Keaty's homes still stand in Des Arc, but the Bethell house is his most outstanding accom-
plishment.

It has been said that the Bethell house was designed by R. P. Morrison, who also designed
the Prairie County Courthouse (located two and one-half blocks from the Bethell house).

B. B. Bethell was supposedly so taken with the design of the courthouse, that he contracted
Morrison to draw his house plans. This statement, however, is yet unsubstantiated due to
lack of written records.

The Bethell house is architecturally significant for many reasons. As has already been
mentioned, the Bethell house is one of the finest structures ever to be built in its area.

It is also one of the most easily identifiable buildings in Des Arc, and it has retained

its original appearance for the most part. The design of the structure is unsurpassed in
its area, and features of the home include a huge veranda (1,036 square feet of floor space),
sliding doors, double staircases, leaded glass, and handsome balustrades (one hundred fifty-
eight spindles were used on staircases and handrails).

The Bethell house also stands as evidence of a past lifestyle and culture that is now gone
forever. The structure has a rather romantic aura surrounding it because of its massive
elegance and beauty. It was once the scene of many social events, including dances on the
veranda. Many older people remember being entertained at the Bethell house. Now it stands
as a monument to a past that can never be again.

lpamily Bible of Dr. William and Elizabeth Bethell, January 12, 1852.

2Natalie Walt Childress, Interview, May 18, 1978.

3Ted R. Worley, "The Early History of Des Arc and Its People," White River Journal,

March 22, 1956-March 28, 1957, part XLV.

4Henry Preston Bethell, Interview, May 5, 1978.

5Natalie Walt Childress, Interview, May 18, 1978.

6Ibid.

7Abstract of Title to Lots 9, 10, 11 and 12, Block 39, Watkins Survey to the town of
Des Arc, E. B. Rogers & Co., Deed book 4, p. 382.

8Virginia Mohler Garde, The Early Bethells and Their Descendants, p. 202.
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2 rpid.

loAbstract of Pitle: to Lots 9, 10, 11 and 12, E. B. Rogers and Co., Deed book B, p. 362.

llIbid., Deed book 24, p. 143.

121pid., Deed book 34, p. 375.

13W. J. Caskey, Interview, May 18, 1978.
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Suite SOO C,onhnen’rol Building - Markham and,Main - Lnt’rlaRock, Arkansas 72201 Phone: (601) 371-2763

August 10, 1978

sy ™

PR

Mr. Britt A. Skar \
P. O. Box 440 {
o\

Des Arc, AR 7204 Bedford Brown Bethell House

Des Arc, Prairie County
Dear Mr. Skarda:

The staff of the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program is preparing a
Naticnal Register nominaticn for the akove captioned property which will
be presented to the Arkansas State Review Committee at their September 12
meeting. If approved, the nomination will be submitted to the National
Register office in Washington for final consideration.

The Natiocnal Register of Historic Places is a listing of historic gites
buildings, objects and districts from all across the country that are
worthy of preservation. Entry in the National Register is an honor which
places no obligation on a private owner. It does, however, provide ;
protection through comment by the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation
from federally financed, assisted or licensed projects that might affect

a National Register property.

On October 4, 1976, the President signed a Tax Reform Act of which
Section 2124 refers to tax incentives for historic properties. Enclosed
you will find an information sheet on that tax act.

If you have any questions concerning the program or this property's
nomination, please contact Mike Shinn of our staff.

Enclosed are two copies of this letter. Please complete the form below,
sign and return the original to our office. The copy is for your files.
We would appreciate receiving any comments you might have concerning the
nomination of this property. If we do not hear from you within 30 days

your approval will be assumed.

Sincerely;

Beoobmaa LOrvRoa S

Barbara Woodard, Deputy Director
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

I approve of the nomlnatlot’ii/;he above property to the National Registex
of Historic Places. Yes PSR -

-

Comments: W gudol 1-20\1\,, ﬁ—&aA—; _ Norneralion
A Do G- vUt L. W&m M )
‘?'/&“7‘?6 /gﬂ,a:g e 00 X o in

Date Slgnature

A Division of the Department of Akansas Natural Cuttural Hertage
An Equal Opportunity Empolyer.
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Bethell, Bedford Brown, House Des Arc
- Prairie County
Morris House Bradford
White County
Memphis, Paris, & Gulf Depot Mineral Springs

Howard County

Also Notified

Honorable Dale Bumpers

Honorable Kaneaster Hodges, Jr. State Historic Preservation Officer
Honorable James G. Tucker, Jr. Ms. Anne Bartley
Honorable Ray Thornton Acting Director

Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
Suite 500, Continental Building

NR Byers 12-22-78 Markham and Main Streets
i Little Rock, Arkansas 72201






